
   

 

 

 

 

Alameda County Employees’ Retirement Association 

BOARD OF RETIREMENT 

OPERATIONS COMMITTEE/BOARD MEETING 

NOTICE and AGENDA 

 

ACERA MISSION: 
To provide ACERA members and employers with flexible, cost-effective, participant-oriented 

benefits through prudent investment management and superior member services. 

 

Wednesday, April 5, 2023 

9:30 a.m. 

 
LOCATION AND TELECONFERENCE

  
COMMITTEE MEMBERS 

 
ACERA 

C.G. “BUD” QUIST BOARD ROOM 

475 14TH STREET, 10TH FLOOR 

OAKLAND, CALIFORNIA 94612-1900 

MAIN LINE: 510.628.3000 

FAX: 510.268.9574 

 

The public can observe the meeting and offer 

public comment by using the below Webinar 

ID and Passcode after clicking on the below 

link or calling the below call-in number.  

 

https://zoom.us/join 

Call-In Number: 1 699 900 6833 

Meeting ID:  879 6337 8479  

Password: 699406 

For help joining a Zoom meeting, see: 

https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-

us/articles/201362193 

KELLIE SIMON, CHAIR ELECTED GENERAL 

  

OPHELIA BASGAL, VICE     

CHAIR 

APPOINTED 

  

ROSS CLIPPINGER ELECTED SAFETY 

  

HENRY LEVY TREASURER 

  

ELIZABETH ROGERS ELECTED RETIRED 

  

 
This is a meeting of the Operations Committee if a quorum of the Operations Committee attends, and it is a meeting of the Board if a quorum 

of the Board attends. This is a joint meeting of the Operations Committee and the Board if a quorum of each attends. 

 

Board and Committee agendas and minutes and all documents distributed to the Board or a Committee in connection with a public meeting 

(unless exempt from disclosure) are posted online at www.acera.org and also may be inspected at 475 14th Street, 10th Floor, Oakland, CA 

94612-1900. 

 

Public comments are limited to four (4) minutes per person in total. The order of the items on the agenda is subject to change without notice.  

 

Note regarding accommodations: If you require a reasonable modification or accommodation for a disability, please contact ACERA between 

9:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. at least 72 hours prior to the meeting at accommodation@acera.org or at 510-628-3000.

https://zoom.us/join
https://zoom.us/join
https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/201362193-Joining-a-Meeting
https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/201362193-Joining-a-Meeting
http://www.acera.org/
mailto:accommodation@acera.org


OPERATIONS COMMITTEE/BOARD MEETING 

NOTICE and AGENDA, Page 2 of 3 – April 5, 2023 

 

Call to Order: 9:30 a.m. 

 

Roll Call 

 

Public Input (Time Limit: 4 minutes per speaker) 
 

 

Action Items:  Matters for Discussion and Possible Motion by the Committee 

 

1. Review of the Administrative Hearing Policy 

-Jeff Rieger 

Recommendation 

 

That the Operations Committee recommend to the Board that the Administrative 

Hearing Policy continues to be necessary and appropriate and that the Board make the 

revisions to the Administrative Hearing Policy shown in the redline included with this 

agenda packet.   

 

2. Review of the Error Correction Policy 

-Jeff Rieger 

Recommendation 

 

That the Operations Committee recommend to the Board that the Error Correction 

Policy continues to be necessary and appropriate and that the Board make the 

revisions to the Error Correction Policy shown in the redline included with this 

agenda packet. 

 

3. Review of Board and Committee Operations Policy for Possible Additional 

Limitations on Public Comment at Board and Committee Meetings 

 

-Jeff Rieger 

Recommendation  

 

That the Operations Committee consider whether to add additional limitations on 

public comment at Board and Committee meetings. Proposed additional limitations 

are shown in the redline to the Board and Committee Operations Policy included 

with this agenda packet. 

 

Information Items:  These items are not presented for Committee action but 

consist of status updates and cyclical reports 

 

1. Operating Expenses as of 02/28/2023 

-Erica Haywood 

 

2. Statement of Reserves as of 12/31/2022 

-Erica Haywood 

 

 



OPERATIONS COMMITTEE/BOARD MEETING 

NOTICE and AGENDA, Page 3 of 3 – April 5, 2023 

 

3. Board Effects Presentation  

-Dana D’Arienzo  

 

Trustee Remarks 

 

Future Discussion Items 

 

May (to be presented at Board Meeting)  

• Quarterly Financial Statements as of 03/31/23 

• Operating Expenses as of 03/31/23 

• Quarterly Cash Forecast Report  

• Board Member Conference Expense Report for 1st Qtr. 2023 

• Senior Manager Conference and Training Expense Report for 1st Qtr. 2023 

 

 

June 

• Operating Expenses as 04/30/23 

• Technology Report 

• MMRO Annual Report 

 

Establishment of Next Meeting Date 

 

June 7, 2023, at 9:30 a.m. 

 

Adjournment 



 

Office of the Chief Counsel 
To: Operations Committee 

From: Jeff Rieger, Chief Counsel 

Meeting: April 5, 2023 

Subject: Policy Review 
 
 
At this meeting, the Committee will review proposed revisions to the Administrative 
Hearing Policy and Error Correction Policy, per the Board’s regular cyclical review of those 
Policies. The Committee will also consider possible revisions to the Board and Committee 
Operations Policy to provide additional reasonable limitations on public comment. The 
proposed policy revisions are shown in the redlines attached hereto and discussed below. 
 
Administrative Hearing Policy 
 
The primary recommended change is to clarify that staff and the CEO need not take a 
position on a member request and may, instead, bring the request to the Board for a 
decision outside of an adversarial hearing process. This procedure should help streamline 
decision-making and give staff more flexibility when addressing member requests. Also, 
the Board may be able to receive confidential advice from the Chief Counsel, which may 
not be advisable on an appeal from a staff denial under due process principles. This non-
adversarial process is already available by law but providing a framework in the Policy will 
provide guidance and transparency for all parties and staff. 
 
Another recommended change is to clarify the CEO’s authority to accept late appeals to 
the CEO or to the Board. Sometimes it may be in the interests of ACERA and its 
membership to have a “late” appeal heard, so that the matter can be addressed 
administratively before a member seeks relief in the courts. 
 
Error Correction Policy 
 
The two primary changes relate to how interest is applied to amounts ACERA owes 
members/beneficiaries for benefit underpayments and amounts members/beneficiaries 
owe ACERA for benefit overpayments. First, I recommend the Policy state that 
members/beneficiaries will be paid interest on underpayments that were due to ACERA 
errors. This is consistent with law and ACERA’s past practice in cases where interest was 
legally required. Including the proposed language in the Policy provides guidance and 
transparency to all parties and staff. Second, some of the Policy’s existing provisions 
regarding the application of interest that some members/beneficiaries owe to ACERA are 
ambiguous. The proposed revisions help clarify how the interest will be calculated without 
making substantive changes. 
 
Other recommended changes to the process when a member/beneficiary owes ACERA 
for benefit overpayments include: (a) increased authority for the CEO to compromise 
recovery (from $10,000 to $15,000) or waive recovery (from $300 to $500), and (b) 
decreased maximum repayment time from ten to five years (absent a financial hardship). 



Policy Review 
April 5, 2023 
Page 2 
 

 

Board and Committee Operations Policy 
 
Gov’t Code § 54954.3(b)(1) provides: “The legislative body of a local agency may adopt 
reasonable regulations to ensure that the intent of [the public comment requirement] is 
carried out, including, but not limited to, regulations limiting the total amount of time 
allocated for public testimony on particular issues and for each individual speaker.” 
 
The Board and Committee Operations Policy currently states: “The duration of any public 
comment shall normally be no longer than four (4) minutes per speaker, but the Chair of 
the meeting may allow for longer public comment.” Also, the meeting Chair has authority 
to allow or require that all public comments on an agenda item must be made at the time 
the agenda item is discussed. Some Trustees have raised concerns that, under the current 
rules, a large group could use public comments to unreasonably delay Board or 
Committee meetings, which has reportedly occurred at some California public meetings 
after the increase in remote public participation opportunities resulting from the pandemic. 
 
The following framework for public comment is offered for the Operations Committee’s 
consideration to balance the public’s right to make comments at Board and Committee 
meetings with the Board’s and Committees’ reasonable control of meetings: 

 
1. Continue to limit public comment to four minutes per individual per meeting and 

give the Chair authority to allow or require that all public comments on an agenda 
item must be made at the time the agenda item is discussed.1 
 

2. State that, at a Board meeting, the Board Chair need not allow public comment on 
an item that was already considered at a Committee meeting at which public 
comment was allowed if the Committee has made a recommendation that is before 
the Board, per Gov’t Code § 54954.3(a). 
 

3. Add a limitation that the meeting Chair normally will not allow more than 40 minutes 
of public comment per agenda item, subject to increase by the Chair. If there 
appears to be many individuals who wish to comment, the Chair will determine 
how many there are. If there are more than ten, the Chair may limit the time for 
each public comment as follows: 
 
 11-13 individuals will get 3 minutes each. 

 14-20 individuals will get 2 minutes each. 

 21-26 individuals will get 90 seconds each. 

 27-40 individuals will get 1 minute each. 

 No more public comment after 40 individuals have spoken.2 

                                                 
1  Ribakoff v. City of Long Beach (2018) 27 Cal.App.5th 150 (three-minute limit upheld); Olson v. Hornbrook 

Cmty. Servs. Dist. (2019) 33 Cal.App.5th 502 (requirement of public comment when agenda items 
discussed upheld). 

 
2  Chaffee v. San Francisco Public Library Com. (2005) 134 Cal.App.4th 109 (may shorten normal comment 

time based on circumstances of meeting). 



Policy Review 
April 5, 2023 
Page 3 
 

 

 The order of public comments will be determined first by sign-up sheet in the 
Board Room and then by order of virtual hands raised on Zoom. 
 

4. State the legal requirement that the meeting Chair must allow twice the allotted 
time for a non-English speaker who utilizes a translator unless simultaneous 
translation equipment is available in which case the normal time limits apply. 
 

The Board has discretion regarding the kinds of limitations described above. Thus, the 
Board may adopt other reasonable new limitations or no new limitations at all. 
 
I will be happy to answer any questions at the Operations Committee meeting regarding 
any of the proposed revisions to the three policies described above. 



 
Administrative Hearing 

Policy  



 

Administrative Hearing 
Policy 

 

I. Purpose 

This Ppolicy provides a procedure for the Board to review ACERA Staff decisions, except 

for disability matters. Hearings on disability matters are governed by the Disability 

Retirement Procedures. The objective of this Ppolicy is to ensure a fair and efficient 

consideration of member , survivor and beneficiary mattersrequests. 

II. Definitions 

A. Applicant:  A member, survivor, or beneficiary of ACERA. 

B. Board:  The ACERA Board of Retirement. 

C. Day:  Calendar day. 

D. Hearing:  The presentation of sworn testimony, other evidence, and legal argument before 

the Board or Hearing Officer. 

E. Hearing Officer:  Person who conducts an administrative hearing on issues related to a 

matter referred to that person and who provides Findings of Law and Fact to the Board 

and a Proposed Recommendation. Government Code section 31533 provides who may be 

a Hearing Officer. 

F. CEO:  Chief Executive Officer of ACERA. 

III. Matters Regarding Policy and Board Discretion 

G.A. Nothing in this Policy requires staff to take a position on an applicant’s request. Staff may 

elevate an applicant’s request to the CEO without denying the request. 

B. Nothing in this Policy requires the CEO to take a position on an applicant’s request. If the 

CEO determines that the applicant’s request implicates matters of policy or falls within 

the Board’s discretion to grant or deny, the CEO may bring the matter to the Board for 

resolution without proceeding through the procedures in Section IV below. In such cases: 



Administrative Hearing Policy Revised September 17April 20, 
20230 

page 2 

 
1. The CEO will provide the applicant with at least 30-day notice that the matter will 

be brought to the Board for consideration at a public meeting. 

1.2. The applicant will be permitted to submit written materials for the Board’s 

consideration no later than 15 days before the Board meeting at which the matter 

will be considered. Ordinarily such materials will be included in the Board’s public 

agenda backup but may be provided in the Board’s confidential packet when 

authorized by law. 

3. The matter will ordinarily be placed on the Board’s agenda for open session at a 

regularly scheduled Board meeting. The CEO may place the matter on the Board’s 

closed session agenda if the matters to be discussed are protected from public 

disclosure pursuant to the Brown Act. 

2.4. The applicant will have the opportunity to address the Board at the meeting when 

the matter is considered, subject to the Board Chair’s control of the meeting. 

5. The Board may hold a closed session to consult with Chief Counsel or outside 

counsel when authorized and properly agendized under the Brown Act. 

6. The Board may issue a final decision or may require further proceedings, which 

may (but need not) include the procedures outlined in Section IV below. 

III.IV. Guidelines and Procedures for Appeals of Denied Requests 

A. Filing a Timely Appeal from a Denied Request 

1. An applicant may appeal ACERA staff’s decision in writing to the CEO within 30 

calendar days of the date of staff’s notification to the applicant of the decision. The 

CEO may consider a late appeal if the CEO determines there was good cause for 

the late appeal or consideration of the late appeal is in the interests of ACERA and 

its membership. The CEO will respond in writing with a decision either supporting 

the position taken by ACERA staff or modifying or overturning that decision. 

2. The Board delegates to the CEO full authority to make all initial determinations 

regarding claims by applicants and participating employers. The CEO will consult 

with appropriate advisers as the CEO deems necessary. 



Administrative Hearing Policy Revised September 17April 20, 
20230 

page 3 

 
3. If the applicant does not agree with the decision of the CEO, the applicant may 

appeal the decision in writing to the Board within 30 calendar days of the date on 

the CEO’s notification to the applicant of the decision. 

4. Appeals to the Board from administrative decisions will ordinarily be placed on the 

Board’s agenda for open session at a regularly scheduled Board meeting. The CEO 

may place the matter on the Board’s closed session agenda if the matters to be 

discussed are protected from public disclosure pursuant to the Brown Act. 

5. Failure to file a timely appeal will constitute a waiver of the right to have the appeal 

heard, although the CEO may allow an untimely appeal to proceed to the Board, if 

the CEO determines there was good cause for the late appeal or consideration of 

the late appeal is in the interests of ACERA and its membershipin the CEO’s sole 

discretion. 

B. Date and Notice of Hearing: 

1. The Board may hear the matter directly or refer it to a Hearing Officer for a 

recommendation to the Board for final decision. (Govt. C. 31533). 

2. If the Board hears the matter directly, the hearing shall be set by the office of the 

CEO at the earliest mutually agreeable date and the office of the CEO shall deliver 

by US mail and email (if available), a notice of hearing to the applicant and all other 

parties at least 30 days before the hearing, unless the parties agree to a shorter 

notice period. ACERA shall provide a copy of this hearing Ppolicy and any 

applicable regulations regarding the administrative hearings. 

3. When the Board hears a matter directly, the Board may alter or truncate the 

procedures described in this Policy when it determines that doing so is in the 

interests of justice and efficiency. 

C. Appointment of Hearing Officer 

1. If the Board refers the matter to a Hearing Officer, the process will be as follows: 

a. The Board will refer the matter to the Legal Department for assignment of a 

Hearing Officer from a rotating list of approved Hearing Officers. 



Administrative Hearing Policy Revised September 17April 20, 
20230 

page 4 

 
b. The Legal Department will provide the first name on the rotating list to the 

parties. 

c. Either party may challenge a Hearing Officer for cause by filing a written 

objection with the Legal Department with 10 calendar days of the date of the 

notice of the list. A challenge for cause is an allegation that the Hearing Officer 

cannot be fair and impartial. The Legal Department shall review the challenge 

for cause and, if sustained, select another name from the list of Hearing 

Officers and advise the parties accordingly. If circumstances giving rise to a 

challenge for cause arise or are discovered after appointment of the Hearing 

Officer, and the Hearing Officer does not recuse him or herself, the party 

challenging the Hearing Officer may make a record of the circumstances and 

present them to the Board as part of a hearing before the Board when the 

matter is before the Board pursuant to section F(1)(b)(4) below. 

2. The Hearing Officer will set the date of the hearing in conjunction with the 

schedules of the parties. 

D. Conduct of Hearing 

1. The Board Chair or Hearing Officer shall preside over the hearing. 

2. The Chair or Hearing Officer shall make all rulings necessary for fair and efficient 

proceedings, including the admissibility of evidence, conduct of witnesses and 

parties and scheduling. 

3. Parties (including ACERA Staff) and their counsel are prohibited from having 

communications with Board members or Hearing Officers regarding matters 

related to the hearing without the presence or knowledge of the other party. 

E. Hearing Process 

1. All parties are entitled to representation by an attorney licensed to practice in the 

State of California at any hearing at the sole expense of that party. Once ACERA 

has notice that an attorney is representing an applicant, all notices and other papers 

shall be served on the attorney. 



Administrative Hearing Policy Revised September 17April 20, 
20230 

page 5 

 
2. The party seeking relief from ACERA has the burden of proof and shall present 

their case first, followed by ACERA staff. In all cases, the presentation may 

include: 

a. Opening statement; 

b. Testimony of witnesses and presentation of documentary evidence; 

c. Cross examination of witnesses; 

d. Rebuttal evidence; 

e. Closing statements 

3. Both ACERA staff and the applicant are entitled to submit written evidence or 

argument to the Board or Hearing Officer. Each side will provide copies of the 

materials proposed to be offered at the hearing to the other side at least 10 days 

before the hearing is held. 

4. Evidence 

a. Witnesses must testify under oath or affirmation administered by the Hearing 

Officer or the Board Chair. 

b. Each party is responsible for obtaining those subpoenas it deems necessary for 

the presentation of its evidence at hearing. All subpoenas are to be issued in 

accordance with Government Code section 31535. 

c. The hearing need not be conducted accordingly to technical rules relating to 

evidence and witnesses. Any relevant evidence shall be admitted if it is the sort 

of evidence on which responsible persons are accustomed to rely in the conduct 

of serious affairs regardless of the existence of any common law or statutory 

rule which might make improper the admission of such evidence over objection 

in civil actions. The rules of privilege shall be effective to the extent that they 

are otherwise required by statute to be recognized at the hearing. 

d. The Hearing Officer or Board Chair has discretion to admit relevant and 

reliable evidence to or exclude irrelevant or repetitious evidence. 



Administrative Hearing Policy Revised September 17April 20, 
20230 

page 6 

 
e. The record shall be closed to new evidence at the conclusion of the final day if 

hearing unless each party stipulates to leave the record open. 

F. Board Consideration and Action 

1. Hearing Officer Findings of Fact, Conclusion of Law and Recommended Decision 

a. Following a hearing by a Hearing Officer, the Hearing Officer shall transmit to 

the Board written proposed findings of fact, conclusions of law, and 

recommendations. 

b. Upon receiving proposed findings of fact and recommendations, the Board may 

do one of the following: 

1) Approve and adopt the proposed findings and recommendations; or 

2) Require a transcript or summary of all the testimony, plus all other 

evidence received by the referee. Upon receipt thereof the Board shall 

take such action in its opinion is indicated by such evidence; or 

3) Refer the matter back to the hearing office with instructions for further 

proceedings; or 

4) Set the matter for hearing before the Board. At such hearing, the 

Board shall hear and decide the matter as if it had not been referred to 

the Hearing Officer. 

c. Staff will notify the applicant in writing of the Board’s determination within 10 

days of the hearing. 

2. Board Hearing 

a. Following the hearing, the Board will deliberate and vote on the matter and 

instruct staff to notify the applicant in writing of the Board’s determination 

within 10 days. The determination may, but need not, include a statement of 

decision. 



Administrative Hearing Policy Revised September 17April 20, 
20230 

page 7 

 
b. A Board member who did not attend all portions of a Board hearing may not 

participate in the Board’s deliberations and vote, unless all the following 

conditions are met: 

1) A quorum of members who attended the full hearing is not available; 

2) The member has read the transcript (or listened to the audio recording) 

of that portion of the hearing during which he or she was not in 

attendance; and 

3) The member has stated on the record that he or she has undertaken 

and completed such review. 

G. Review of the Board’s Decision:  The Board has exercised its discretion to establish the 

procedures outlined in this Policy. The procedures outlined in this Policy are not required 

by law. Board decisions made pursuant to this Policy are reviewable by ordinary 

mandamus under Code of Civil Procedure section 1085. 

IV.V. Policy Review 

The Operations Committee shall review this policy at least every three (3) years to ensure 

that it remains relevant and appropriate. 

V.VI. Policy History 

The Board adopted this policy on July 19, 20181. 

The Board reviewed and affirmed this policy, with revisions on September 17, 2020April 

20, 2023. 

                                                 

1 The Board adopted the Administrative Hearing Policy on July 19, 2018. The Board adopted the Administrative Appeals Procedures on 
September 17, 2015. The Board reviewed and affirmed the Administrative Appeals, with revisions, May 19, 2016 and September 17, 2020.. 



 
Error Correction Policy



 

Error Correction 
Policy 

 

I. Purpose 

This Policy establishes standards and procedures for recovery or resolution of 

overpayments or underpayments of benefits and underpayments of member contributions. 

This policy does not apply to overpayments of member contributions, which are resolved 

according to IRS requirements.1 

II. Objectives 

 To meet the Board’s fiduciary obligation to conserve fund assets and protect the integrity 

of the fund for the benefit of the members and beneficiaries. 

 To make reasonable efforts to restore the Plan to the position it would have been in had 

no error occurred. 

 To maintain the tax-qualified status of the pension plan and avoid making any gift of 

public funds. 

III. Assumptions 

 The procedures and outcomes are intended to comply with applicable requirements of the 

Internal Revenue Code (IRC) and Internal Revenue Service (IRS) regulations, including 

the IRS Employee Plans Compliance Resolution System (EPCRS). If there is a conflict 

between applicable law and this policy, the law shall govern. 

 This policy applies when an error affects an individual member’s or beneficiary’s benefits 

or contributions. In the event of a system-wide error that affects multiple 

members’/beneficiaries’ benefits or contributions, the Board may implement a system-

wide correction process that it determines appropriate under the circumstances. 

 

                                                 

1  In general, employers refund overpaid member contributions to active members and ACERA refunds overpaid member 
contributions to inactive or retired members. 



Error Correction Policy Revised September 17, 
2020April 20, 2023 

page 2 

 
IV. Guidelines & Procedures 

 Investigation and Reporting. 

1. Investigation:  When an error is identified, Staff shall promptly notify the CEO (or 

designee), who shall ensure that an appropriate and timely investigation is 

undertaken into the facts and circumstances surrounding the error and that all 

necessary corrective actions are taken. 

2. Reporting:  The CEO shall make periodic reports to the Board on errors and 

corrections results at least annually. 

3. Overpayment based upon fraud: 

a. Staff shall be vigilant for any indications of fraud as a cause for overpayment, 

whether by the payee or a third party. 

b. In the event that fraud is suspected, Staff shall immediately notify the Legal 

Department and the CEO who will investigate whether evidence of fraud 

exists. 

c. Further investigation may include retention of a private investigator or other 

outside resources as may be deemed appropriate under the circumstances. 

d. Based on the evidence uncovered, Staff and the Legal Department may notify 

law enforcement and pursue criminal action. 

e. If justified and reasonable, Staff and the Legal Department may undertake civil 

action to recover fraudulently obtained ACERA funds. 

 Overpaid Benefits and Underpaid Contributions:  Correction and Recovery 

1. As soon as possible after an error is discovered, ACERA staff shall determine: 

a.  The appropriate date of correction; 

b. The amount of the correct benefit or contribution amount starting from the 

date of correction; 



Error Correction Policy Revised September 17, 
2020April 20, 2023 

page 3 

 
c. The amount of the error starting from the beginning of the erroneous payment 

to the date of correction; 

d. The “appropriate interest” related to the error as defined below. 

2. ACERA shall promptly notify the member/beneficiary in writing of the following: 

a. The amount and starting date of any prospective adjustment to benefits or 

contributions reflecting the corrected amount. The starting date must be no less 

than 30 days after ACERA sends the notice to the member/beneficiary, unless 

ACERA’s Chief Counsel determines that there is good cause to make the 

correction sooner. 

b. The circumstances of the error and the means used to calculate the corrected 

amount. 

c. The amount of any overpaid benefits or underpaid contributions plus the 

amount of appropriate interest. 

d. Repayment options, which may include a lump sum payment, installment 

payments or an offset against future benefits; and 

e. The right of the member/beneficiary to appeal the ACERA staff determination. 

ACERA will make the necessary adjustments on a going-forward basis 

regardless of whether an appeal is filed. If the staff determination is overturned, 

the ACERA Board may direct staff to refund any amounts withheld during the 

appeal process. 

3. Appropriate Interest 

a. Interest on the outstanding amount due is compounded twice annually during 

the period where the benefit was overpaid and during any repayment period. 

b.a. If the evidence shows that the benefit overpayment or contribution 

underpayment resulted from fraud or dishonest conduct by the 

member/beneficiary or because the member/beneficiary provided, or caused to 

be provided, inaccurate information to ACERA or the member’s employer, 

then “appropriate interest” will be as follows: 



Error Correction Policy Revised September 17, 
2020April 20, 2023 

page 4 

 
1) ACERA’s smoothed, semi-annual earned interest rate returns on its 

investments from the time of the error until the last period of 

smoothed semi-annual interest returns before discovery of the error 

(investment losses will not result in any reduction to the principal 

amount the member owes ACERA). 

2) The ACERA’s assumed annual effective rate of return, compounded 

monthly (e.g., monthly interest of 0.56541% when the assumed rate of 

return is 7% annually)  from the time of discoverythe last period of 

smoothed semi-annual interest returns (per No. 1 immediately above) 

until such amounts are fully repaid. 

c.b. If the benefit overpayment or contribution underpayment was solely the result 

of an error by ACERA or the member’s employer, then “appropriate interest” 

will be as follows: 

1) No interest shall be charged from the time of the error until discovery 

ACERA notifies the member ofof t the error. Any liability created by 

this action shall be assumed aspart of ACERA’s unfunded liability. 

2) ACERA’s assumed annual effective rate of return, compounded 

monthly (e.g., monthly interest of 0.56541% when the assumed rate of 

return is 7% annually) from the time the member is notified of the 

error until such amounts are fully repaid.The assumed rate of return 

from the time of discovery until such amounts are fully repaid. 

4. In structuring a repayment methodology, ACERA staff shall take into 

consideration the financial circumstances of the member/beneficiary affecting their 

ability to make payments. The repayment schedule will not exceed 510 years except 

in cases of extreme hardship as defined below. 

5. In the event of the death of the member/beneficiary before full repayment has 

been made, ACERA shall use all reasonable efforts to recover the unpaid amount 

from the member/beneficiary’s estate or trust, survivors, heirs, and/or 

beneficiaries. 



Error Correction Policy Revised September 17, 
2020April 20, 2023 

page 5 

 
6. If no agreement can be reached with the member/beneficiary for repayment, or if 

the member/beneficiary fails to respond to communications from ACERA staff, 

ACERA staff may take unilateral action to recover of the unpaid amount, including 

through reductions to future benefit payments, subject to Board approval review by 

the Boardif the member appeals to the Board.. 

 

 Compromise & Settlement. 

1. In some circumstances, ACERA may agree to receive less than the full amount in 

repayment. The recovery options may include: 

a. Using a discounted interest rate; 

b. Waiving interest altogether; or 

c. Accepting less than full repayment of the principal. 

2. Factors to be considered in compromising any recovery shall include, but not 

limited to: 

a. The likelihood of collection; 

b. The cost of collection; 

c. The amount of possible recovery; 

d. The relative fault of the member/beneficiary, ACERA and employer; and 

e. Extreme hardship to the member/beneficiary or to his/her estate or heirs. 

3. For purposes of this policy, “extreme hardship” will be determined as follows: 

a. The member bears the burden of establishing any claimed “extreme hardship.” 

b. “Extreme hardship” is not a bright line test, and a finding of “extreme 

hardship” depends on the facts and circumstances presented by the member. 



Error Correction Policy Revised September 17, 
2020April 20, 2023 

page 6 

 
c. ACERA will consider the following factors in determining whether the member 

has established an “extreme hardship” justifying compromise of the amount 

owed by the member: 

1) Net worth of member and spouse. 

2) Amounts and sources of all income to the member and spouse. In 

general, ACERA will consider that an “extreme hardship” is 

established if the member’s gross income is no more than 400% of the 

current federal poverty level based on the member’s household 

composition of single, married or family. 

3) Monthly expenses. 

4) Existence and value of real estate and personal assets. 

5) Divorce or legal separation. 

6) Current or pending catastrophic financial events. 

7) Other factors presented by the member. 

4. If the member’s gross income is no more than 400% of the federal poverty level as 

defined above, ACERA will not collect more than 15% of the member’s gross 

income. 

5. In consultation with the Chief Counsel the CEO is authorized to compromise 

recovery of error amounts of $150,000.00 or less, excluding interest. The CEO 

shall apply the standards for compromise set forth in this Section. The CEO is also 

authorized to waive recovery of claims of $5300.00 or less. All other compromises 

must be approved by the Board. 

6. ACERA shall maintain a record of all error corrections, payments, collection 

efforts and compromises and releases related to those errors. 

 Underpayment of Benefits 

1. When ACERA has underpaid benefits to the member, the member shall be entitled 

to a prospective adjustment to his or her retirement benefits necessary to correct 



Error Correction Policy Revised September 17, 
2020April 20, 2023 

page 7 

 
the error, as well as a lump sum payment for all past amounts owed as a result of 

the error. 

1.2. If the underpayment was due to an ACERA error, as determined by the CEO in 

consultation with the Chief Counsel, ACERA will pay interest at ACERA’s 

assumed annual effective rate of return, compounded monthly (e.g., monthly 

interest of 0.56541% when the assumed rate of return is 7% annually) from the 

time of underpayment to the time the member is made whole for the 

underpayment. 

2.3. If the member who was underpaid dies before payment of the lump sum amount 

due, the payment will be made in accordance with ACERA’s process for paying 

residual amounts following the death of the member. 

 

 Underpayment of Contributions: 

For underpaid member contributions (which includes completely missed 

contributions), ACERA will follow the procedures outlined in the Membership 

Policy for members who are currently employed with a participating employer, and 

will follow the procedure outlined in Sections IV(B) and (C) above for members 

who are no longer employed by a participating employer. 

 Appeals/Due Process. 

The member/beneficiary may appeal any staff decision regarding corrective actions 

consistent with the Board Administrative Appeals Policy. 

V. Policy Review 

The Operations Committee shall review this policy at least every three (3) years to ensure 

that it remains relevant and appropriate. 

VI. Policy History 

 The Board adopted this policy on September 17, 2015. 



Error Correction Policy Revised September 17, 
2020April 20, 2023 

page 8 

 
 The Board reviewed and affirmed this policy, with revisions on June 21, 20182 

 The Board reviewed and affirmed this policy, with revisions on September 17, 2020April 

20, 2023. 

                                                 

2 The Board adopted the Recovery of Overpayment of Member Benefits & Underpayment of Member Contributions Policy on September 17, 2015. 
The Board reviewed and affirmed, with revisions, May 19, 2016, and June 21, 2018 and September 17, 2020.. 



 
Board and Committee 

Operations Policy 



 

Board and Committee 
Operations Policy 

 

I. Purpose 

The ACERA Board and Committee Operations Policy (“Policy”) provides ACERA 

Trustees (“Members”) and Staff with guidelines for ensuring that Board and Committee 

meetings will be conducted as efficiently and effectively as possible.  

II. Policy Guidelines 

A. Governing Law and Rules Of Order 

1. The noticing and agendas of all Board and Committee meetings shall conform to 

the requirements of the Ralph M. Brown Act, Government Code Section 54950, et 

seq. (the “Brown Act”). 

2. Board and Committee meetings shall be guided by the principles embodied in the 

most current edition of Robert’s Rules of Order (Robert’s Rules). It will be 

assumed that the Chair of a meeting has acted with unanimous consent, with all 

procedural objections waived, unless a Member raises a procedural objection 

before the Board or Committee takes action on the matter for which the 

procedural objection could have been raised. When a Member timely raises a 

procedural objection, ACERA’s Chief Counsel will resolve that objection according 

to Robert’s Rules. 

3. In the event of a conflict between the Brown Act and Robert’s Rules, the Brown 

Act shall prevail. 

B. Agendas – Posting 

1. A written agenda conforming to the Brown Act shall be prepared for all regular 

Board and Committee meetings and shall normally be distributed to all Members, 

posted at ACERA’s offices and on ACERA’s website at least one week before the 

meeting. 

2. When distribution and posting cannot reasonably be accomplished at least one 

week before the meeting, it will occur at least 72 hours before the meeting, per the 

Brown Act. 



Board and Committee Operations Policy Revised April 201, 20232 page 2 

 
3. Agendas for special meetings shall be posted at least 24 hours before the meeting 

and special notices shall be provided as required by Section 54956 of the Brown 

Act. 

4. The general rule is that substantive matters within the Board or Committee’s 

jurisdiction that are not on the posted agenda may not be discussed at a meeting. 

Some limited exceptions may apply from time to time and the Chief Counsel will 

advise the Board as to the applicability of such limited exceptions. 

5. Outside of a properly noticed meeting, a majority of Members of the Board or a 

Committee shall not use a series of communications of any kind, directly or 

through intermediaries, to discuss, deliberate, or take action on any item of 

business that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board or Committee. 

C. Board Meetings Agenda Content 

The Board Meeting Agenda will generally include the following topics as necessary: 

1. Call to Order 

2. Roll Call 

3. Public Comment 

4. Consent Calendar 

a. Report on Service Retirements 

b. List of Deceased Members 

c. Approve Requests for up to 130 Bi−Weekly Payments to Re−Deposit 

Contributions and Gain Credit 

d. Approve Uncontested Staff Recommendations on Disability Retirements and 

Death Benefits 

e. Approve Uncontested Hearing Officer Recommendations for Disability 

Retirements and Death Benefits 

f. Approve Minutes of Board and Committee Meetings 



Board and Committee Operations Policy Revised April 201, 20232 page 3 

 
g. Miscellaneous 

5. Contested Disability Retirements and Death Benefits 

6. Committee Reports, Recommendations and Motions 

7. New Business 

8. Conference Reports 

9. Announcements 

10. Board Input 

11. Establishment of Next Meeting 

12. Closed Session 

13. Report on Action Taken in Closed Session 

14. Adjournment 

The Board Chair may alter the agenda and order of business to the extent authorized by 

the Brown Act. If a Member objects to an alteration of the order of business, a two-thirds 

vote of the voting Members is required for the Board Chair to alter the order of business. 

D. Committee Meetings Agenda Content 

Committee Meeting will generally include the following topics: 

1. Call to Order 

2. Roll Call 

3. Public Comment 

4. Action Items 

5. Information Items. These are items for which Staff does not recommend any 

particular action, but the Committee is not precluded from making a 

recommendation to the Board regarding the subject matter that appears on the 

agenda, if that recommendation otherwise complies with the Brown Act. 



Board and Committee Operations Policy Revised April 201, 20232 page 4 

 
6. Trustee Remarks 

7. Future Discussion Items 

8. Establishment of Next Meeting 

9. Adjournment 

The Committee Chair may alter the agenda and order of business for Committee meetings 

to the extent authorized by the Brown Act. If a Member objects to an alteration of the 

order of business, a two-thirds vote of the voting Members is required for the Board Chair 

to alter the order of business. 

E. Board And Committee Officers 

At the first regular meeting in January, the Board shall elect one of its Members Chair, one 

of its Members Vice Chair, and one of its Members Second Vice Chair. The term shall be 

for either one year, or until their successors are duly elected and qualified. 

1. The Chief Executive Officer (CEO) shall serve as Secretary to the Board. 

2. The Chair of the Board shall: 

a. Appoint Members to all ACERA standing and ad hoc Board Committees and 

in making such appointments shall whenever possible, appoint both elected and 

appointed Members to each Committee. The Chair may consider the need to: 

1) Maintain continuity in Committee membership, 

2) Rotate the composition of Committees to provide Members with 

diversified experience, 

3) Reflect a Member’s area of interest and/or skill set, and 

4) Minimize conflicts of interest. 

b. Remove and replace Committee Members so appointed; 

c. Appoint a Chair and Vice Chair for each Committee of the Board; 

d. Coordinate the preparation of the Board agenda with the CEO; 



Board and Committee Operations Policy Revised April 201, 20232 page 5 

 
e. Chair meetings of the Board; 

f. Communicate with external parties in cooperation with the CEO; 

g. Coordinate the process for annually evaluating the performance of the CEO as 

prescribed in applicable Board policies; 

h. Coordinate the process in the event that the Board evaluates its own 

performance; 

i. Serve as a member of all Committees if any Committee member is absent. 

3. If the Board Chair is unavailable or unable to carry out his or her duties, the First 

Vice Chair shall assume duties of Board Chair. If the First Vice Chair is unavailable 

or unable to carry out his/her duties, the Second Vice Chair shall assume the duties 

of the First Vice Chair. 

4. In the event that an officer of the Board becomes ineligible or unable to complete 

his or her term, the following action shall be taken: 

a. If said officer is the Chair, then the Vice Chair shall assume the Chair’s position 

for the balance of the Chair’s term, and a new Vice Chair shall be elected at the 

next regularly scheduled meeting; 

b. If said officer is the Vice Chair, then the Board shall elect a new Vice Chair at 

the next regularly scheduled meeting; and 

c. If said officer is the Second Vice Chair, then the Board shall elect a new Second 

Vice Chair at the next regularly scheduled meeting. 

5. Officers may be removed from the Chair, Vice Chair, and Second Vice Chair 

positions by a two-thirds (⅔) vote of the entire Board (i.e., six members). 

F. Committee Procedures 

1. Standing Committees exist to assist the Board in fulfilling its charter and to apply 

more concentrated attention to specialized topics that impact the Board’s effective 

management of ACERA. All actions taken by standing and ad hoc Committees are 

deemed to be advisory and must be approved by the Board before becoming 



Board and Committee Operations Policy Revised April 201, 20232 page 6 

 
effective, unless the Board determines that expeditious action is required, such that 

final action should be taken at a Committee meeting. 

2. The CEO shall assign a staff member to each standing and ad hoc Committee to 

serve as Staff Liaison and primary contact for the Committee Chair and Committee 

Members with respect to the work of the Committee. 

3. At their first meetings each year, the Retiree, Investment, and Operations 

Committees shall establish a schedule of meetings for the rest of the year. The 

other Committees will establish meetings as needed. 

4. The Committee Chair may cancel or reschedule a meeting if it is apparent that 

there will not be a quorum or there are insufficient issues to warrant a meeting. 

Attempts will be made to provide all Committee Members with at least one week’s 

notice of the cancelled or rescheduled meeting. 

5. Each Committee (including ad hoc Committees upon creation) shall, in 

consultation with its Staff Liaison, adopt a charter outlining its purpose, 

responsibilities and meeting frequency. 

6. Each year, staff liaisons shall prepare a draft work plan for the following year 

containing proposed monthly agenda items for their standing Committees and 

incorporating ACERA’s ongoing cyclical workload requirements and any budget 

and business plan instructions received. A proposed work plan shall be submitted 

to each Committee at the first or second scheduled meeting of the New Year for 

review and modifications. Committee work plans can be modified throughout the 

year as needed. 

7. Each Committee Chair shall be responsible for: 

a. The efficient operation of the Committee, 

b. Facilitation of the work outlined in the Committee Charter and prioritized in 

the Committee work plan, 

c. Retaining focus primarily on policy and oversight while allowing management 

to carry out the day−to−day implementation of Board and Committee policy, 

and 



Board and Committee Operations Policy Revised April 201, 20232 page 7 

 
d. Coordinate Committee activities with the Staff Liaison. 

8. In the event a Committee Chair is absent or the position is vacant, the Committee 

Vice Chair shall preside over meetings of the designated Committee. In the event 

the Committee Chair and Vice Chair are both absent the Board Chair, or a Board 

Vice Chair will preside over the designated Committee. If the Committee Chair 

and/or Vice Chair positions are vacant, the Board Chair shall appoint a new 

permanent Committee Chair and/or Vice Chair. 

G. Quorum and Voting 

1. The Board is composed of nine (9) Members, plus an Alternate Safety Member, 

and an Alternate Retired Member. A majority of the Members of the Board 

constitutes a quorum and a quorum of the Board is required to take action. 

2. Committees shall be composed of no more than five (5) Members, except the 

Investment Committee and the CEO Succession Committee which shall be 

composed of the full Board. A majority of the Members of a Committee 

constitutes a quorum of that Committee and a quorum is required for the 

Committee to take action. 

3. Any motion passed or business transacted at a Board or Committee meeting must 

be approved by a majority of the Members present and voting, except as otherwise 

provided by law. A Member who abstains is not considered present and voting, but 

remains present for purposes of a quorum. 

4. For the purposes of determining the voting rights of the Alternate Seventh 

Member and the Alternate Eighth Member, a Member can be “absent” for a 

particular agenda item. A Member who leaves the boardroom during an in-person 

meeting or who disconnects from a video-conference meeting is “absent” for that 

agenda item. Alternatively, a Member can irrevocably declare themselves “absent” 

with respect to a particular agenda item for the purpose of allowing the appropriate 

Alternate to vote in their place. 

5. The Alternate Seventh Safety Member shall be counted towards a quorum and may 

vote only in the event the following Members are absent: 

a. Second Member, or 



Board and Committee Operations Policy Revised April 201, 20232 page 8 

 
b. Third Member; or 

c. Seventh Member; or 

d. Both the Eighth and the Alternate Eighth Members. 

6. The Alternate Eighth Retired Member shall be counted towards a quorum and may 

vote only in the event the following members are absent: 

a. Eighth Member; or 

b. Both the Second and Third Members; or 

c. Both the Second and Seventh Members; or 

d. Both the Third and Seventh Members.1 

H. Public Comment 

1. Every agenda for a regular Board or Committee meeting shall provide members of 

the public an opportunity to address the Board or Committee at each meeting on 

any item under the subject matter jurisdiction of the body. Public Comment 

appears on the agenda immediately after Roll Call, but it is within the meeting 

Chair’s discretion to allow or require public comment on particular agenda items 

when those items are discussed by the Board or Committee. 

2. With respect to any agenda item, the public shall be given the opportunity to 

comment before or during the Board or Committee’s consideration of the item, 

including closed session items prior to adjournment into closed session. 

3. Where a member of the public raises an issue not on the agenda, no debate or 

action may be taken at that meeting. However, Members of the Board or 

Committee or staff present may 

a. provide a brief response or ask a question, 

                                                 

1  If two of the Second, Third and Seventh Members are absent from a meeting, they are both still considered absent even if the Alternate Seventh 
Member is present and voting. Thus, if two of those members are absent, the Alternate Seventh Member and the Alternate Eighth Member may vote. 



Board and Committee Operations Policy Revised April 201, 20232 page 9 

 
b. provide a reference to staff or other resources for factual information, or 

c. direct staff to place the issue on a future agenda. 

4. The duration of any public comment shall normally be no longer than four (4) 

minutes per speaker per meeting, but the Chair of the meeting may allow for longer 

public comment.. 

5. At a Board meeting the Board Chair need not allow public comment on an item 

that was already considered at a Committee meeting at which public comment was 

allowed if the Committee has made a recommendation that is before the Board. 

4.6. The meeting Chair normally will not allow more than 40 minutes of public 

comment on each agenda item. The meeting Chair may increase that time 

limitation. If there is an item for which there appears to be many individuals who 

wish to comment, the Chair will determine how many individuals want to make a 

public comment on the item before public comment is taken. If there will be more 

than 10 individuals who want to make a public comment, the Chair may limit the 

time for each public comment as follows: 

 11-13 individuals will get 3 minutes each. 

 14-20 individuals will get 2 minutes each. 

 21-26 individuals will get 90 seconds each. 

 27-40 individuals will get 1 minute each. 

 No more public comment after 40 individuals have spoken. 

 The order of public comments will be determined first by sign-up sheet in 

the Board Room and then by order of virtual hands raised on Zoom or 

similar remote attendance platform. 

5.7. In all cases, the meeting Chair must allow twice the allotted time for a non-English 

speaker who utilizes a translator, unless simultaneous translation equipment is 

available in which case the normal time limits apply. 

I. Attendance And Participation At Board And Committee Meetings 



Board and Committee Operations Policy Revised April 201, 20232 page 10 

 
1. Members agree to make every reasonable effort to attend all meetings of the Board 

and of Committees on which they serve. All Members are free, but not obligated, 

to attend any Committee meeting. All Members may participate in Committee 

deliberations, but only Committee Members may vote on matters before the 

Committee, unless a quorum of the Board is present, and then Board voting rules 

apply. 

2. If a quorum of the Board attends and participates in a Committee meeting as more 

than observers, the meeting will be a full Board meeting. The following Committee 

rules will nevertheless continue to operate for those meetings: 

a. The Committee Chair will continue to run the meeting. 

b. The actions of the Committee will still be subject to approval by the full Board, 

unless the Board determines more expeditious action is necessary. 

3. Alternate Members 

a. An Alternate Member shall have the same responsibilities and access to a closed 

session of the Board or a closed session of a Committee, as a Board Member 

whether or not the Second, Third, Seventh or Eighth Board Members are 

present. 

b. Alternate Members may replace absent Committee Members, participate in 

Committee meetings and vote on motions, in accordance with Board rules on 

replacing absent members. 

c. Alternate Members may not hold office on the Board or Committees. An 

Alternate Member, who replaces an absent Board Member who is also an 

officer, does not become an officer as a result. 

4. Compensation and Reimbursement 

a. Eligibility for compensation for the Fourth, Fifth, Sixth, Eighth (including 

Alternate), and Ninth Members (Cal. Gov. Code §§31521, 31520.5) for 

Committee attendance does not require membership on the Committee. 

b. Reimbursement to employers of Elected Members. (See Voluntary Elected 

Member Employer Reimbursement Policy.) 



Board and Committee Operations Policy Revised April 201, 20232 page 11 

 
 

J. Minutes 

1. The Secretary is responsible for preparation of the Board minutes and the Staff 

Liaison is responsible for Committee minutes. 

2. The person responsible for minutes shall record the following in the minutes: 

a. The time and place of each meeting of the Board or Committee. 

b. The names of Members present. 

c. All official acts taken listing the motion and the first and second (a first and 

second may, but need not, be listed for actions taken in closed session). 

d. The individual votes of every Members present for all actions taken. 

e. Describe with sufficient detail any actions taken by the board or Committee 

including pertinent discussions. 

f. Brief references to non-action or information items; and 

g. Include direct instructions to Staff by the Chair. 

3. Approval of Minutes 

a. If a Committee meets in at least ten days before a Board meeting, the Staff 

Liaison and Committee Chair will finalize the Committee minutes in sufficient 

time to be distributed to the Board no later than three days before the next 

scheduled Board meeting. 

b. If a Committee meets less than ten days before the next Board meeting, the 

Committee Chair will provide a summary of the Committee meeting to the 

Board at the Board meeting that week. The minutes will be presented to the 

Board for review and adoption at the next scheduled Board meeting. 

c. Staff Liaison will present draft minutes to the Committee Chair at least three 

days before they must be presented to the Board, according to the deadlines 

stated above. If the Committee Chair does not respond, the Staff Liaison will 

distribute the draft minutes to the Board, according to the deadlines above. 



Board and Committee Operations Policy Revised April 201, 20232 page 12 

 
K. Pattern And Dates Of Board Meetings 

1. Regular meetings of the Board of Retirement shall be held on the third (3rd) 

Thursday of each month at 2:00 p.m. at ACERA’s office in Oakland, California. 

The Board Chair may approve any revisions to the date, time, or venue. 

2. Special meetings of the Board of Retirement may be called at any time by the Chair 

or a majority of all the Members of the Board subject to the provisions of 

Government Code Section 54956. Notice of not less than twenty−four (24) hours 

shall be given to each Board Member, media outlets requesting notice, and 

provided on the ACERA website. 

3. In the fall of each year, ACERA may hold its Board of Retirement Offsite Retreat 

which may include an evaluation of the budget and Business Plan for the current 

and following years, discussion with senior management staff and such educational 

and informational presentations as deemed appropriate. 

L. Standing Committees 

The Standing Committees of the Board are as follows: 

1. Retirees 

2. Investment 

3. Governance 

4. Operations 

5. Actuarial 

6. Audit 

7. CEO Evaluation 

M. Ad Hoc Committees 

1. The Board may approve the establishment of temporary ad hoc Committees to 

gather information and make recommendations to the Board or a Committee on 

specific subject matters. The Board Chair shall appoint the Chair and Members of 

ad hoc Committees. Ad hoc Committees shall have no more than four (4) 

Members and, if they are otherwise compliant with the Brown Act, shall not be 



Board and Committee Operations Policy Revised April 201, 20232 page 13 

 
required to comply with the agenda requirements of this Policy. Board Members 

not appointed to an ad hoc Committee are not permitted to attend meetings of the 

ad hoc Committee or discuss any of the issues addressed by the ad hoc committee 

with any members of the ad hoc committee. 

2. At the beginning of each calendar year, the Board shall assess the need for all 

existing ad hoc Committees and formally dissolve any ad hoc Committees deemed 

unnecessary. 

III. Policy Review 

The Governance Committee shall review the Board and Committee Operations policy at 

least every three (3) years to ensure that it remains relevant and appropriate. 

IV. Policy History 

A. The Board adopted this policy on February 15, 2018. 

B. The Board reviewed and revised this Policy on April 21, 2022.2 

B.C. The Board revised Section II(H) on April 20, 2023. 

 

                                                 
2 The Board Operations Policy was adopted on November 18, 1999; and renewed, with revisions, on August 15, 2001; March 8, 2005; November 9, 

2006; March 19, 2009; August 18, 2011; April 17, 2014; and November 17, 2016. The Committee Operations Policy was adopted on August 15, 2002; 
and renewed, with revisions, on November 9, 2006; March 19, 2009; August 18, 2011; and April 17, 2014; and, without revisions, on July 21, 2016. 
The ACERA Board Officers Policy was renewed, with revisions, on December 6, 2006. The Board Operations Policy, the Committee Operations 
Policy, and the ACERA Board Officers policy were combined into the Board and Committee Operations Policy, which was adopted by the Board 
of Retirement on February 15, 2018. The Board reviewed and affirmed this Policy, with revisions, on June 21, 2018. The Board of Retirement 
renewed the Board and Committee Operations Policy, with revisions, on August 15, 2019. 


























	(1)04052023Operations Committee AgendaFINAL
	(2)Memo To Operations Committee Re Policy Reivew April 2023
	Operations CommitteeMemo
	Administrative HearingPolicy
	Error CorrectionPolicy
	Board and CommitteeOperations Policy


	(4))040523 Operating Expenses
	(5)040523 Statement of Reserves



